I. The District established and *llowed policies and procedures to propetly protect, mamtain, and dispose o
personally identifiable inf’ n and confidentinl records, such as student and employee information &
social security mumbers. s S ibrory, sovirecords

GCneral ioneg-rerm aept

~—

Yes v

Objective: To determine whether the District is following the laws related to bonds to ensure volers are informed and the District

complics with the bond covenants.

1. The District calculated and issued debt in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes and the Arizona
Constitulion, ARS, §15-1021

No debi 1ssued

2. The District did not expend bond proceeds for items with usetial lives less than the average life of the bonds
issued or 5 years. A RS §/3-1021(F)

No deb issued

31 ling bonded indebtedness and a balance remained in the Bond Building Fund afier the acquisition or
construction of facilities for which the bonds were issucd, the g ing board ferred the ining bolance
to the Debt Service Fund. Otherwise, if the District had no ding bonded indebted and a balonce

remained in the Bond Building Fund after the acquisition or construction of facilities for which the bonds were
issued, the governing board used the remaining bulonee to reduce taxes, A (15 515- 02411

No outstanding bonds

4. The District credited interest or other money eamed from investing bond proceeds to the Debt Service Fund
unless the voters autharized the interest to be eredited to the Bond Building Fund or federal laws or rules require
the interest to be used for capital expenditures. A RS §15-1024(C)

No bond procecds

Preparer (AUDIT FIRM Representative) Title

Dallas R. Siler 11, CPA Dircctor

Date

04/26/2021



. The District had vendor contracts or data-sharing agreements in place with 3rd parties nccessing or hostine

- . Y ¥ i
District data that addres ntruls to support security and processing integrity, and backup procedur “
applicable, before data wiiuessed/shared, -’
9. The District d chunges to data in busi (i.e., employee i pay rutes) and IT (i.e., user roles, Vi @
= L
access rights) were apj 1 by an autherized individual prior o processing changes.
10. The District enforced data security policies that required strong nevwork passwords that aligned with credible V. i
i » s
industry standards, such as strong p 1 sereen locks, rep I failed sign-on atempl lockouts,
and prohibited sharing of user IDs and passweords.
11 The District’s IT systems generated electronic sudit trail reports or change logs with information about the Yos =1
‘ i 5 - C3
electronic transnetion that the District reviewed or analyzed regularly to d i tions' propricty,
12. The Distriet monitored and reviewed IT system-generated incident or error reports to identify security threats or Yes o
(%
other unusual activity and addressed the instances.
13. The District had a recovery or contingency planning d in place 10 restore or resume system services in Yes &

cuse of disruption or failure that were reviewed and tested at least annually,

Objeetive: To determine whether the Distriet has implemented effective controls for its transportation program to eosure it properly
reports its transportation miles and student riders to ADE, which helps to ensure the District receives the appropriate
amount of State aid.

1. The District accurately calculated and maintained ion for miles reported on the Trans ion Route Yes =
Report submitted to ADE, ARS8, §15.922

2. The transported students reported as eligible on the Transportation Route Report met the definition in A LS Yes w
E15-HU1A)R).

NECOras managd

Objective: To determine whether the District has impl ted effecti Is to properly protect and maintain its records,

including student and employee data, and that its records were disposed of securely and in d with blished

time frames.



20. The District uploaded membership and absence information 1o ADE that agreed to the Distret's computerized Yes
system records for the fi doys of school. A LS §15-50)
S ——

21, I students were admitted who were id

of Arizona, the Distriet excluded the student from the District’s
student count and State aid calculations and charged tition ns applicable. A RS, §15 823(G) und (L)

No nonresidents noted

niormatia ftechnolnoy
iliormation \‘.\4...-\!1\.':___'

Objective: To determine whether the District adopted an information I:cchlln]:rg) (IT) security framewsrk that aligned with credible

industry standards and implemented eontrols that provid that its data was accurate and reliable
and protected from unintended exposure and g Test work should determine that the District adopted a
framework and controls were operating to protect District and student data.
L. The Dismet maintained adeq paration of duties in its IT systems that prevented | employee from Yos -
completing a transaction without additionn] review and approval procedures,

2. The District reviewed and documented any system or softy

changes impl 1. Ve i
3.The Distriet assessed secunly risks for unauthorized aceess to the Districl's systems, network, and data, Yes xr
including through email, intemnet use, VPN, wircless access, and mobile devices, and provided employees
security ining at least lly to prevent, identify, and report suspected security risks and threats,
4. The District d 1erminated or ferred employees' or vendors' aceess immediately from all systems, Yes v
5. The District's system soft and hard wag physically d from | d aceess, theft, and Yes e
environmental hazards,
6. The District scheduled and pcﬂ‘ormed backup-control procedures for all eritical systems at least annually to Yes -

ensure pted of and minimal loss of data.

7. The Distriet routinely completed and application updates and patches when they became available. Yes ™



12. The District maintained ar-nprinte d

and accurately reporied students enrolled in its AOI prog— -
including rederermining. stual full time equivalent (FTE) for each student corolled in an AQI Pro
following a student's witho¥al o after the end of the school year. A RS §14-508

No AQI program

Semple

13. The Distriet ensured the student’s name in the student munagement system matched the name on the legal
document on file. A RS §]5-525(D).

Sample

w

14. The entry date in the computerized atiendance system agreed to the entry form and was entered into the
attendance system within § working days after the actual date of the student's enrollment.

Population Sample
166 3

15. The student membership begins on the first day of sctual 1 ar, for continuing/pr e <t the

first day that classroom instruetion wus offered, provided that the studens actually attend within the first 10 days
of school,

16. The District oblained and maintained verifiable d ion of Arizona resid for lled stud

gram. AQLS S15-800([0)01) and ADE's Arzons Residency Documentation

g students in its AOI p
Guidelines

Yes

Yes

For une of five students selected for enties, the Distniet obtained a Proof of Arizona Residency form, however, could not provide

documeitation suppating the for.

17. The District reported student withdrawal dates o ADE and maintained d ion that supported the date of
data cory.
Population Semple
63 5

18. The District prepared and retsined the Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form for each withdmwal, and the
forms were signed by o District administrator, AJRUS. 815527

19. The District counted students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive unexcused absences in membership only
through the last day of actunl mtendance or excused absence. ARS §1S-901(AN L

Population Sample
3 3

Yes

Yes



4. The District prorated high school students' bership if Hled in less than 4 subjects.

b —

District is grades PS-8

Sumple

5. The District was a CTED or CTED member, AR S, §]5-50%

No CTED program

6. The District had an AOI program. AR S 5] 5-50%

No AOQI program

7. For students enrolled in a program provided by a CTED in a facility the District owned or operated (satellite

prog ), the District reported the aetual 1] for only the District classes the student was enrolled in at
the District’s school (exeluding CTED program classes) under the District's CTDS number,

No CTED program

Population Sample
0 0

8. For smud lled in a program the CTED provided in a fucility the District owned or operated (satellite
programs), the District calculated swdent ak in 1 with ADI's methods based on the number of

District classes the student was enrolled in and attended at the Distriet's school, (excluding CTED satellite
program classes)

No CTED program

9, For CTED satellite programs, the CTED reported actual student enrollment data for only the CTED program
classes the student was emrolled in at that member distriet's satellite location (excluding school district classes).
ARS, §15-3930)

No CTED program

Sample

10, For CTEDs that meet for ot least 150 minutes (not including any breaks) per class period on a CTED central
campus, the CTED reported the membership s 0.75. AJLS. 815393100

No CTED program

Sample

11. For students enrolled in both District and in CTED central program courses, the sum of the ADM was no more
than 1.75 and the amount claimed by cither entity was no more than 1.0, AR.S, §15-393(0)

No CTED program

Sample

N/A

NiA



3. The District prepared the AFR and AFR summary (if one was prepared) with all information as require”’

Yes
ARS.§15:905 and foll ‘e AFR Rovicw, Submssion, and Publication [nsustions, and ARS $15.6 ) !

4. The District properly prepared the Food Service page of the AFR and reponted expenditures from the M&O Yes
Fund 001 and Capital Fund 610 that agreed with the Distriet's aceounting records,

5. Detailed source documents were traceable to the District's trial balance that was used to prepare the financial Yes
statements,

6. The District’s website included its average teacher salary and a copy of or a link to the District’s page from the Yes
most recent Auditor General’s District Spending Report, ARS, £15-905 and A RS, $41-1279.03 :

7. The District submitted the School District Employce Report (SDER) to ADE, and it was accurate and timely. Yo o
ARS. £15.94)

The District could not provide documentation of the date the SDER report wus originally submitted 10 the Arizons Depanment of Education,

Student attendance reporting

Objective: To determine whether the District has implemented effective controls to reported accurate student membership and
attendance information o ADE to reduce the risk that the District received
local property taxes.

an inappropriat of State aid and/or

| The District's calendar ensured school was in session for the required days and offered swdents the required Yes -
instructional hours per grade level, including Arizona Online Instruction (ADI) Programs as preseribed in A RS,
§15-B08 1) 1), ARS E15-901IANL), and A RS, §15-901 0T),

2.If the District had an early (pre-) kind I the District caleulated and submitted bership Ves G
information for early (pre-) kinderg dents' ! records for this program only for siudents with
disabilitics, ARS, §15-50 (AN 1)(a)(i) and LISFR Memorandum No. 175

Sample

o

3, The District appropriately tracked and reported student membership and absences. A RS §15.90] No =

Two of five elementary and junior ligh students selected did not have partial day shsenees properly ealeulated, resulting i wn understatement
of uhsences of 15 days

Population Sample
164 5

Dats Entry
5 Elem/JH



7. The Distriet { that valid fingerprint el

cards were on file for all required personnel and a method 1o

Yes
identify employees whose were going to expine was in place. ARS 815512, ARS §15-342, and A
§41-1750 - -
B. The District enrolled employees who met the ASRS bership enteria, withheld emp) ibutions, and Yes
in o timely manner remitted employee and District ‘.antnbu:mrui in accordance wn.h the ASRS Employer
Manual.
9. The District accurately calculated and in a timely manner remitted the alt 1 ibution rate pay 1o Na
ASRS for all applicable positions filled by ASRS relirees. ASRS Alermate Contribution Rate

The District didl not aveurately caleulite and remit alternative contribution mte (ACR) payments to ASRS for one ASRS retiree. The ACR

rate for FY 20 was 10.41%, and based on our culeulution, the Distriet only remitted 10.19% for that employee, which resulied inan
underpayment of 813,54,

10. The District calculated the accrual and use of vacation, sick leave, and

I ¥ time for all employees in

Yes b4
accordance with District accrual rates for specified years of service, maximum amounts to be ucerued, and
disposition of acerued time upon separation of employment.
11, Attendance records were prepared for each pay period for cach employee subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act Yes -
(FLSA) and were approved by the employec and the employee's supervisor.
12. The District's payroll was propecly reviewed and approved hefore processing and distribution to employees, No A

An employment contract or work agreement was not provided for one of 1en employees reviewed.

Objective: To determine whether the District properly prepared its financial reports, including its Annual Fi ial Report (AFR),

for the audit year to provide legislative and ight bodics, i 5 and creditors, and the public a transparent view of
the District’s [ ial position op ional results,
1. Budgeted expendi ported on the AFR agreed with the District's most recently revised adopted expenditure Yes Y
budger

2. The District rcponcd revenue m:d cxpcm!.ltu:t amounts on the AFR that agreed with the District's accounting
records and af bl !




7.The Distriet's CSF monies “ere used to supplement, rather thon supplant, existing funding from all o~

Yes N
sources, (See USER Men m N, 943
- ~’
8, The District's budget balances remaining at year-end in any of the 3 C8Fs (011-013) were carried forward in the Yes .

same finds to ensure that the restrictions placed on the original allocation of revenues was applied in future
yeurs,

Objective: To determine whether the District has Implemented effective contrals to reduce the risks associated with payrall

penditures by d
compensated.

g evidence of review, verification, and approval to ensure employees are appropriately

L. The District's payroll-processing responsibilitics (i.c., adding new employees, adjusting pay, payroll preparation,

Yes ~
payroll autharization, and warrant distribution) were seporated among employees,
2. The District established a delayed payroll system for hourly employees that did not delay payments more than 7 Yes -
business days during ils nommal 2-week payroll processing cycle und allowed sdequate time for payroll
adjustments to be made, if needed, between the end of the pay period and the payment date.
3.The District reguired employces' uE | Vpayrall action forms to document the employees' Yes =
{ far P { P "
4. The District ensured any adj to pay for empleyees who received | I wage pay during the Yes o
vear were based on cach employee’s oflicial rate of pay.
Population Sample
L6 8
35, The District ensurcd hourly employees were not paid for more than the actual hours worked to date. Yes &
Population Sample
22 0
6. The District's individual personnel files included all appropriste supporting documentation, as listed on USFR No L

pages VI-H-1 through 4.

An employment contaet o work sgreement was not provaded for one of ten employees eviewed.



25. The District followed the School District P Rules for purch of any suppli ials, =~ N/A =
equipment from govern wid members if the purchase exceeded $100,000, or followed the guidelin

written quotes if below thsssreshiold. AR S, §38.503

No purchascs from board members noted

26. For purchases the District mede from General Services Administration (GSA) sehiedules 70-1T and 84-Law
Enforcement, the governing board first authorized the contracts in writing. A LS. $15-213(K) and R7-2-1196(C)

NA ~

No purehuses from GSA noted

_lassroom site

Objective: To determine whether the District appropriately spent these State sales tax revenues for teacher pay and programs to
support students, such as class size reduction, dropout prevention, and tutoring, as allowed by law.

L. The District's total Classroom Site Fund (CSF) revenues were propetly allocated among the following funds:

Yes -

011-Base Snlary (20%), 012-Performance Pay (40%), and 013-Other (40%), and expenditures in the CSFs
(011-013) were within the CSF budget limit, AR5 $ 5077

2. For Fund 011, expenditures were only for teacher base salary i ploy lated exp , and Yes >
registered warmnt expense.

3. For Fund 012, expenditures were made only in d with the g ing-board-ndopted, performunce- Yes -
based teacher comy ion system, including employ related exy and regi | wartant exp

4. For Fund (13, expenditures were only for clasy size reduction, teaches comy ion i i o
intervention progs teacher develoy dropoul-prevention programs, teacher liability insurance premiums,
and registered warrant expense, and not used for school-spansored athleties.

5. The District's teacher base salary increases (Fund 011), performance-based teacher compensation increases Yes -
(Fund 012}, and manies spent from Fund 013 for teacher compensation increases were paid only to employecs
possessing o teaching certificate and employed to provide instruction related 1o the Diswie's educatianal
mission. Arizona Attorney General Opinion 113-005

6. The District's CSF revenues and expendi were ded in the sey CSFs (011-013) throughout the Yes -

fiscal year rather than only at year-end.



17. The District provided tro* * ~ and guidance related to restrictions on soliciti or

L ¥ o o - toas
any personal gift or ber o value of $300 or more, A5, 515213014} and R7-2-1003 (Effective & /
procurements July 1, 2021 thereafler.)

The Bistrict did not provide maining snd guidance related o restrictions o soliciting, seeepting, or agrecing to accept any personal oift or
benefit with a value of S300 or more,

18, The District used only school district purchasing cooperatives fram cooperatives it wos a ber of or Yes
used only lead distriet contracts that it was listed as o member of in the solicitation or ensured its additional :
purchases would not have materially increased the volume stated in the original solicitation. R7-2-119] through
R7-2-1195
19. The District performed due diligence to support the use of each cooperative or lead district contract the District Yes
made purchases from during the audit period.
Population Sample Data Entry
3 3 Mohave
20. The District prepared written determinations for any specified professional services, construction Yes
services, or materials purchased through a school purchasing cooperntive, including how the deter to
use the contract was made, R7-2-1004
21. The District, when acting as a lead district in a p followed the il d quired for NIA
competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals, as applicable, and idered the total esti |
volume of purchases for all public procurement units identified in the solicitation, R7-2-1011
District was not a lead Distriet
Population Sample Data Entry
0 0 0
22, For all emergency procurements, the District retained o written | ing the basis for the NA =
emergency, the selection of the particular contractor, and why the price paid was ble, and this
was signed by the individual authorized to initiate emergency procurements. R7-2-1055 and R7-2-1056
No emergency purchases
23, The Distriet's governing board approved all sole-source p before any purchases were made, and the Yes =
written d: inations were retained in the proc files, R7-2-1053
24, For any purchase of services from goveming board members or goods or services from Distnict employees, N/A e

regardless of the expenditure amount, the District followed the School District Procurement Rules, except as
authorized by A RS §]15-123,

No purchases from board members or emplovees noted



7. The District included all - ~d content in the solicitation, as applicable. R7-2-1024(B) or R7-2-1042(A}
| - —
No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20

8. The District recorded the time and date that sealed bids or proposals were received and siored bids ar proposaly
unopened until the time and date set for opening, R7-2-1029 or R7-2-1045

No RFP4 or IFBs issued FY20

9. If the District led multipl it established and followed procedures for the use and award of
multiple contracts, R7-2-1031(D) and R7-2-1050(C)

No RFPs or IFBs issued FY 20

10, The District awarded contracts according to R7-2-1031, R7-2-1032, R7-2-1046(A)(1), or RT-2-1050 and
retained documentation to support the award(s),

No RFPs or [FBs issued FY20

L1 If the District procured ion projects that used i t-risk, design-build, or job-order-

centructing to procure construction services, it complied with the requirements of R7-2-1100 through R7-2-1115,

No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20

12. The District's proc files ined signed p Jisel il for ull employees with job
responsibililies reluted to each pr and for all ipl 1 or technical advisors Involved
in cach procurement process. R7-2-1008(C) and R7-2-1015

No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20

13. The Diswrict's procurement files included applicable written determinations as required througl the
procurement rules,

No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20

14, The District followed A RS §15-213, and R7-2-1093 for the use of multi-term contracts.

No multi-term contracts noted

15. The District followed R7-2-1117 through R7-2-1123 for contracts for specified professional services,

No specified services contraets inted

16, The Distriet’s procurement files ineluded the required information, as applicable. R7-2-1001(%6)

Nu RFPs or IFBs issued FY20

Fa
=

NiA

N/A

NIA

NA

N/A

NiA



8. The District's card purchasee were only for authorized District purposes, within the dollar limits authorized fir

Yes v
the employee, and suppe valid receipts or trunsaction logs that clearly identify the employee making J
purchnse. S S’

9. The District paid credit card and p-card statements before the due date to avoid finance charges and lote fees. i o

The District incurred S308.21 in credit card late fecs and finance charges during the fiseal vear

‘rocurement

Objective: To determine whether the District followed the School District Procurement Rules and USFR purchasing guldelines to

promote fair and open competition among vendors that helps ensure the District is getting the best value for the public
monies it spends.

1. The District obtained at least 3 written quotes for purchases costing at least $10,000, but less than $100,000 and

3 Yoz v
followed the guidelines prescribed by the USFR.
Fopulation Sample
3 3
2. The Distriet properly procured expenditures that individually or cumulatively 1otaled over $100,000. NA L
No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20
3. The District maintained o list of prospective bidders, R7-2-1023 NIA F
No RFPs or [FBs 1ssued FY20
4. The District issued solicitations for invitation for bids (IFB) or request for proposals (RFP) during the fiscal year, NA g
No RFPs or IFBs issucd FY20
5. The District published and, us applicable, provided other adequate notice of the 1ssuance of solicitations. R7-2- NA =
1022, R7-2-1024(C), or R7-2-1042(C)
No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20
Population Sample Data Entry
0 0 0
6. The District issued solicitations at least 14 days before the time and date set for bid opening or the closing date NA s

and time for receipt of bids or proposals, R7-2-1024(A) or R7-2-1042(B)

No RFPs or IFBs issued FY20



L. The District's trave] expen” =s {lodging, meats, and incidentaley and milenge reimbursemenss were for Diste -

Yes
parposes and reimb £ he i blished by the Director of Ari.,
Departm of.‘"'w.‘ s were reimk d or reporied a3 o taxeble employee benefit iF
ovemnight stay or no sul in glerpd) d, in lance with governing board prescribed peticies and
procedures.
Pepaletion Samplc
i4 H
Credit cards and p-cards
Obfective: To d l hether ¢he Di kex roph d effectlve controls over eredit card acd purchasing card (pcard)
purchases to help redute the risk of misnse ond unapp d or feandulent ir. 4|
I The District uped credit eznds.
Yes
Dxala Entry
1 CC. 1 Store, 1 Fuel
2. The District uted p-cards. No
No P-Cards identified
Dtn Entry
nn
. Ths District d differr emplayees were respansible for iwuing cards; mequesting, mutherizing, end Yes
ing purchoscy; and payrent p ing.
4, The District iscued and iracked passession of oll Disiriet credis cards end treined empleyees who make eredit Yes
rand purchases or process Fona on the Dixtrier’s pelicics 2nd procedures.
3. The Distrier d cards immediniely fram terminated employ NiA
No terminated employces with access ta eredil cards noted
6. The District’s s periodically reviewed purch for horized vendars and purchases over Yes
approved limis ond‘or purchoses that circumven the procurement nites and Distrist policizs.
7. The Distriet ensured someane other then o cand user recanciled eradit card end peard supponiing documentation Yes

and billitg sistements.



3. The District's expenditures e made only for allowable District purposes, properly satisficd the specilt
s required for any 1 d monies spent, and were adequately s ed by documentation required
::]:JD;R, 4 1 Spi quately supported by 4 /

For four of 23 expenditines selected for review, the suthorization 1o pay or a receiving report that indicated the items or services were
recenved or complered was not documented.

Sample

25

4. The Distriet’s extracurriculsr activitics fees tax credit monies were expended only for eligible activities that

Yes
qualified under ARS,_ §43-1089.0] and A RS §15-342¢24),
Papulation Sample
1 1
5, The District's Student Activities Fund dish and transfers of monies among student clubs were issued Yes
only when cash was available in the student club aceount and properly authorized by or on behalf of the student
members of a partieular ¢lub and documented in the club minutes.
6. The District's invoices were periodically compared to awarded including cooperati 10 Yes
venify billing umounts were correct and the contract terms and conditions were being met.
7. The District prepared an Advice of Encumbrance for levy funds with the list of liabilities for goods or services Yes
received but not paid for by June 30, including payroll, and filed it with the CSS by July 18. A LS 815-906
(Districts authorized by ARS §15-9140] to panicipate in the Accounting Responsibility Program should
perfomn the duties as deseribed in ARS 815-304))
8. The District properly prepared the Career Technical Education District (CTED) Supplanting worksheet and NIA
adequately supported that monics received from a CTED were used only for vocational education and 10
rather than lant, the District's base year ional education spending, A LS §15-393
No CTED
9, The District retained fully exccuted copies of cach intergovernmental agreement (IGA) and payments for Yes
services were made or received, as applicable. A RS §11-452
iravel
Objective: To determine whether the Distriet impl d effective Is to ensure employees were traveling for District purposes

and appropriately compensated.



4. The Distriet's stewardship " - for items costing at least $1,000 but less than the District's capitalization thresh- " Vi o
included the location, id tion number, and descrip and was updated for any acquisition, transf
disposal.
5. The District properly tagged assets and updated asset lists. v, -

(23

6. The District reconciled the current year's June 30 capital assets list to the previous year’s June 30 list. v o
€35

7. The District performed a physical inventory of all equipment at least every 3 vears and reconciled the inventory Yes v

results 1o the stewardship and capital assets lists upon completion,

Data Entry
6/30/2020

8. The goveming board approved stewardship and capital asset items disposed of during the fiscal year, and the N/A o
assets were ved from the ling list and disposed of in d with Arizona Administrative 45

Code (A.A.C.) R7-2-1131(C).

No disposals noted

Data Entry

wa

Objective: To determine whether the District has effective controls for expenditures in place to ensure expenditures are for an

allowable District purpose. Test work should document processes and contraols that d rate exp ¢ Ir
are properly approved, are for an amount within budget capacity or available cash, and protect cmployces from allegations

of misuse.
1, The District separated responsibilities for expenditure processing among employees (i.e., voucher preparation, Ves o
recordkeeping, and authorization),
2, The District monitored budget capacity in budget-controlled funds and cash balances in eash-controlled funds Yes

before approving purchase orders (PO) and authorizing expenditures, cxcept as authorized in A RS, §15-207,
ARS §15-304 ARS §15:-007 and ARS §15-916




29. The District safeguarde: dture stampg, sipnoture plaics, ood el ic or digiat sl used *

= ¥

opproving accounting n;cmumdmhxnkﬁmdummwmmaacmmw b
only the emplayes whose sig they rep |

30. All District bank were ited monthly by on etiployee not involved with cash handling or issning Yes
eheck&urrecon:ilmiumw:remiewed.ligmd,amidmdhymmxplnyuiudepmdmofmecmh-hmdlhg
proceds,

31. The District tracked and reconciled the rumber of mesle sobd to the tatal cash collected per dy. Yr"

Supplies tnventory

Objretlve: To determing whetber the Distriet has eonirols in place fo kelp physically feguard aad report | des 0

thefr, king, und king, spollege, ard ohsal

1. The Disitict plrysically safeguarded supply ies 1o prevent horized use, theR, damoge, and NiA
obsolescence and enahle accurnic financial reposting,

The District docs not have 4 supplies inveniory

Property control

Objective: Te & | Bether the Districl hay effective s to 2l d property from theft and misure sinee significant

resnurces are [nvested In aequiting and maintaloing District property. Test work should ba completed on & sample basks
onnually and decumented to ensure that land, beldiogs, and equipment ure properly valued, cloxsifled, and reported an

the stevardship and caplial assets lsts

L. The District maintained o capital assets list thet included o)l required information listed in the USFR for o!l fand, Yes
land i buildings, building imp and equip with costs thot exceed the Distriet's

gk 15

topted capitolization threshold. USFR page VI-E+3

2. The District bad security controls in place tn belp prevent heft, loss, unsuthorized use, or damnge ta District Yes
property.
3. The District recorded additions an the eapital assels Hst end iled copitalized acquisitions o capital Yes

expenditures at least annually.



0. The District used the principals' supplies bank eecowmi(y) in accordonee with A RS, §15-354,

A\ =/

No aecount

21. The uxe of debit cards waa prohibited a3 & pay method jated with any District bank account.

22. The Disirict paid bank charges from ondy the M&O Fund revolving bank accoust, Food Service Fund revolving
bank accounr, Auxiliry Opertions Fuad benk accoamt, and Awriliary Opembons Fand revelving bank
account(s) of, if not, the bank charges were reimt d from an epproprioto District fund o benk account.

13. The District separzted responaibilitics for cash-handling and recardkeeping among employoes lic., receiving,

positing, rnd ), 10 anfeguerd monies.

24. The District adequately supporied deperits with issued receipls, cash recedpt summary repants, mail togs, elc.,
o iled sales o Dected with ¥ reports oF ticket bogs.

Semple

17

15. The Distcict’s deposits were made in o timely oaner and supportsd by deposit stips of olher depodit iransmital
g & .

Samplc
17

26. The District’y deposite and cash bolences with the county treasurer were reconciled,

27, The District rebained ing d ion For dish fmm bank

Semple

24, The District safeguanded amuscd checks.

NfA

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes



10 The District used the Stu’  Activities Fund bank account(s) in accordance with ARS. §15-1122,

o

11 The Student Activitics Fund monies were deposited in a bank or treasurer sceount designated as the Student
Activities Fund account.,

12.The Student Activities Fund deposits were properly supporied and included only student clubs' and
organizations’ monics that were raised through the effons of smdents with the approval of the governing board.

Population Sample
31 5
13. The Listrict used the Student Activities Fund revolving bank sccount in Jance with ARS. §15-1124.

N arcount

14. The District used the federal payroll wx withholdings bank account in accordance with USFR page VI-H-6,

No account

15. The District used the State income tax withholdings bank account in dance with A RS §15-1222.

No peeount
16. The District used the empl i prog| withholdings bank ) in ! with A.RS
§15-1225

No aceount

17. The Dristriet used the payroll direct deposits elearing bank account in accordance with A RS §15-1271,

N aveuunt

18, The District used the electronic payments clearing bank account in lance with A RS, §15-1221.

No account

19, The District used the grants und gifts w teachers bank account in dance with AR S $15-1234

No ageount

N/A

NiA

NiA



1. The District closed any har'  -2ounts that were inactive or not awthorized by statute,

N -

Nao innetive hank sccounts

2. The District used an M&O Fund revolving bank account in accordance with AR5 §515-1101.

3. The District used miscellaneous receipts clearing bank ) in dance with AR S §15-141(A)200
No account
4, The District used a Food Service Fund clearing bank s} in d with Arizona Attorney General
Opinion 160-35,

5. The District used a Food Service Fund revolving bank account in accordance with AJLS, §15-1154.

No account

6. The District used an Auxiliary Operations Fund bank account in sccordance with A LS. §15-1126,

No ageaunt

7. The Auxiliary Operations Fund bank or account deposits included all monies raised in conneetion with
the activities of school book and athletics and were supported by approprinte documentation. A RS §15-

126

No auxiliary operations noted

Population Sample
0 0

8. The extracurriculer activities fees tax credit monies were included in the Auxiliary Operations Fund andfor

T y d forina E icular Activities Fees Tax Credit Fund.
Separate Fund
9. The District used the Auxiliary Operations Fund revolving bank ) inaccord: with ARS, $15-1126.

No account

NA

Yes

Yes

NiA

N/A

Yes



1. The District coded transact  in accordance with the LSFR Chan of Accounts,

N

2. The District separated responsibilities to initiate, approve, and record joumal entries and wansfers so that |
individual did not have compl horily over a i

3. The District sequentially numbered journal entries, and retained ing d ion and cvidence the

oF b

Jjournal entry was signed, dated, and approved by someone other than the preparer,

Population Sample

40 3

4. The District transferred monies only between funds listed in the USER SEL Chart of Accounts- Authorize
Transfers,

5. The District d 1 and dated o hily review of financial transactions the CSS initisted (Le., revenue or
journal entries) for propriety and researched and resolved any differences.

6. The District reconciled cash balances by fund monthly with the CS8 or county treasurer's records, and properly
supported, documented, and dated the reconciliations.

7. The District reconeiled revenues, expenditures, expenses, and cash balances (as applicable) by fund, program,
function, and object code at least at fiscal ycar-cnd with the €S8 or county treasurer's records, and the

reconciliation was reviewed and properly

Tr

8. The District prepared reports that iled sales to cash collected a1 student activities cvents.

dSii 4nd revenuce

Objeetive: To determine whether the District maintained controls over eash transactions to safeguard monies, proteet employees
involved in handling monies from accusations of misuse, and reduce the risk of theft or loss. Test work for cash and

1 tnval

revenue should d how the p wirk, employ d in those processes, and how the processes were

verified.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes



9. The governing board rec monthly Student Activities Fund Reports of Cash Receipts, Disbursement
Transfers, and Cash Balans .t were ly p . ARS §15-1123

-

10. The governing board obtained voter spproval to 1 buildings and purchase or lease school sites, unless
otherwise exempted by AR S §15-343(25).

Yes ~

puageting

Objective: To determine whether the District's budget preparation processes ensure that the Distriet properly allocates the monies it
receives, stays within those budgets, and accurately informs the public about the use of those monies.

L. The budget included all funds as required by ARS §15-905 and followed the form's_ Budget Subimission an Yes 5
‘ublication Inswyctions, §
2. Total budgeted expenditures on the adopred budget for the Maintenance and Operation (M&0) and Unrestricted Yes =
Capital Outlay Funds (UCO) were less than or equal to the budgeted on the published proposed budget.
AR §15-905( )
3, Toml budgeted expenditures on the adopted budget for the M&O Fund and UCO Fund were within the general NA 5
budget limit and the total budgeted expenditures. If not, and ADE notified the District, the District followed the
requirements of ARS §15-005(F),
District not notified
4. The District completed its revised expenditure budget before May 15 and filed it electranically with the coumy Yes -
school superintendent (C55) and the Superintendent of Public Instruction by May 18. ARLS §15-905(1)
5, The District reduced the budgel by the prior year's overexpenditure (or a portion of the prior year's N/A G
overeapenditure, as app d by the Superintendent of Publie Instruction) or the District committed to correcting
its prior year's data, AR S.415-005(M) and ARS, §15-018
No prior year overexpenditures
Accounting recoras
Objective: To determine whether the Distriet accurately maintai tng Is to provide support fur financlal information,

Test work should indicate the procedores performed to decument what processes and controls the Distriet has in place 1o
reduce the risk of undiscovered errors that would affect the reliability of Information reported to the public and oversight
agencies, such as tracing detailed source documents to the District's trial balance that agree to (he lnancial statements,



N -

Governing board/management procedures

-

Objective: To determine whether the governing board and District il have ished and
procedures as required by starute,

1. The Distriet held g ing board ings in accordance with ARS 538431 10 38-43 | .04, and p

retained written minutes and’or recordings.

parcd and

2, The District annually provided guidance 1o all goveming board bers and employecs on what i a
substantial interest and that the conflict-of-interest statutes apply to all District goveming board members and
employees. A RS, §38.502 and A RS, §38-508

3. The District annually obtained conflict-of-interest (COly forms that adequately allowed g ing board

bers and employees to fully disclose a confliet of interest in any contract, sale, purchase, or service, and

prior to pring the forms, B reviewed the infe ion 1o ensure governing board members and
ployees properly pleted the form and sufliciently disclosed the required i ion. ARS, §38.502

4. The District maintained, for public inspection, a special file with all documents necessary 1o memorialize all

confliet-of-interest disclosures. AR5, §38-500

5. Employces or governing board members with reported conflicts, except as provided in A RS 515-323, refrained
from voting upon or otherwise participating in any manner in that purchase, A RS, §38-502011) and A RS, §35-
30U

No conflicts noted

i, The District's management notified the Auditor General's Office and appropriately Ived all allegations of
theft, fraud, or misuse of Distnet monies and assets in a timely manner.

No alleganons of thett. fraud or misuse of District monies / assets

7. The goveming board established written personnel and payroll policies and approved employee contracts that
included salary und wage sehedules, and any other agreed-upon terms of employment,

8. The governing board annually appointed a student activities and, if applicabl i student
netivities treasurers, ARS. §15-1122

NA

Yes

Yes

certain



Vernon Elementary School District
Unlflh’ﬂ" System of Financial Records Compliance Questihaﬂ'éu'e
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

instructions

Arizons Revised Statutes {A.R.5.) §15:271 requices the Auditor General's Oflce to infarm amy schocl district foiling to estoblish and maintain
the requicencnts prescribed by the Unifoem System of Financial Records for Arizona School Districer (USFR) that it has %0 days 1o comect the
cited deficiencies. To nssist the Acdivar Genernl's Office in determining whether a disirict h:a ited on acceptshle degree of campliance with
the sequirements of the USFR, the audit firm must complets this USFR Compliancs O dre (CQ).

In addition, A.R.5. §§15 1]3{[-'] ead 15-314(G) require dintricts to heve o systematic review oflhelrpumhmms precticzes and nvernpe daily
ibership {ADM), respectively, performed in conftmction with their ennued or blennial § A pudit 10 ¢ ing whether (he District is in
with the applicabl and student stindsnce Jaws ood rules of the Stetc of Artzima. The Procurement and Studes
d poTting questi ‘“‘inmeusmcqmr' jicta el these requl

musmmmwmcmmmumdmuummmumuyv schoo) disiricts for ing, financis)
mdvmommh::mmphmmquummmmduhmmmmmdmmmnsorm
Dum%uuawmmhmdmwpmpnmwleﬁdmcewmplﬁuhevmcqm dance with the pequi F ibed
betow. The Auditor General's Otfice muy reject those CQs Bt ing the mini:

+ Sufficiess, sppropri ek must he obizined Py for each question to satiefuctorily o ine whether the Districi has
implemented procedures 1o romply with the USFR. The evidence must be included in the audit docwrmeniation o suppart the contmenty.
1f the ovid was obtained end d ted during the financial mudit, that evidence muy be el d to enawer rolated
questiony Click the “tooltip™ pext Lo the CQ question to get more inf jon wbout USFR requi il feview dutes that
st be contidered 10 address the question’s ohjsetive,

Evidence may be ohuined throogh test work, obtervanion, ination. and cliemt ivn. Howcever, ¢lient essertion alone ix not

edequate evideniee to eitppom “Yes™ caswers on the CQ. Sufficient evidence of epproval includes sigianees or infrials and dates.

+ Pepylation size shauld be considered in determining the movber of items 1o test, ond the ilems celected should be rep ive of the
population. Also, additlenz! instructions in the Credit cards, Procizerment, and Stadent aftendance reperting sections prescTibe minimm
szmple sizes that roust be wsed for specific questions. Populstion and semples sizes vaed for 1en work should be cmicted in the felds
provided next o the refated queston.

+ The aumber of itermy tested must be sufficiest to detoming whetber a deficiency was 2o result of an isolated incident or &
problem. Therefore, testing 1 ion, recard, or item is not sufficicnt

+ The wmple size should be expanded if the Audit Fims cemmol cleaily determine whether the District complied with the USFR on that

question.

anpmnnsummmemhlmmtofmmwmmmrmmgmnnmdm:mugortbebmnsmunal

conirals and perform sulficient test work 1o detenmine that (he proced Were inoy 1, followed, rnd I

onmmm:nmdmcmplmcs

- ForG 3 dures question 4, the Audit Firm should confi ¥s opproprinte sction 1o rosolve oll
al]egauonlofllu:ﬂ.ﬁwd.wmeofbumummcsormmbyulhuunm:m:gwplunflhemdmlmmwoommmmg
with the agency invelved in investigeling the sllegations. The Audit Firen should elso consider if the Districl’s interne] coniroly fidled 1o

ux

prevent ar detecl the Dheft, Fraad, o7 misuse and includs & deficiency in the USFR compliance area whers the contyol [ailed.
L} lrlhem:anduummc.sthuDmummwmamofaﬂemmwmdmwadymmmmmaumﬂy
menner (e.g. PO action wad teken; atticiy were oot documented; actions were delayed, inadeq of iNAPprop o the

circumstanees), tho Audit Firm should answer the question “No.™ This includes instances where an extemal investigation ja
underway far ollegetions but Dismict Management did not request the investigeion, was not fully cooperating with the
investigators, or wad nat otherwise attenipting o reselve the alicgations.

o If the Audit Fima ines thet District Py waa ttot mwere of any allegetions (based on inquiry, review of Goveming
Boord minutes, scarch of lacal media coverage, and results of andit test woek), the question should be cnswered “NiA.”

o [{ the Audit Firm finds evidenco of theft, fraud, or misuse of Dirrict assets but docs vot find evidence that Dintrict monngement
wes aware of the pocsible cheft, froud, or misuse, the Audit Fim should report the incidert to the Auditor General's Office, and
etutwer this guestion "N/AL"

A "Yeu" anawer indicotes that the Audit Firm has determined that the Distriet appears in compliaonce with the USFR. on (b2t question and
o “No" anrwer indicales the District does not comply. However, theﬁn:ldemmmmef:mlumuueﬂdtqurwm.mmnn

overnll complianee with the USFR. is made by the Auditor General's Office bared on the evid ¥ d iz the quests sodit
reparty, the sudit dosumeniation. and any other sources of infamation avnilzhle,
+ The Audit Fimn st sdequately explan ell “No™ angwers in the comment box below the question. Deficiencies must be described in

sufficient detail to eoable the Auditor General's Office to determine the nature end significance of the deficiency for: (o) nssessing

complisnce with the USFR, (b) appropriately deseribing the deficiency in o report, and (¢] testng compliance during o status review. The

description should include the nember of itema tested nod the number of excepliont noled, or doller amount of the ¢mmos, end ony other
relevant informeation that would provide comext for the deficiency.

The Audjt Firm coust sdequatsty explein all “M/A™ arawers in lbe comment box, below the questinn. uniess the veason for the N/A is

chvious.

« Cash end sevenues guestions apply to all the Disiric's cash and sevense, including food service, euxilisry operalions, extrarvrmicular
activities fees 1ax credit, and stodent actvities receipts ond bank sccounis, Comments for “No™ nnswers to these questions should
indicale the type of receipt or bank sceount ko which the deficienty applies.

+ The questions in e OO do ot addmsy 2l requirements of the USFR. 1¢ Lhe Audit Fim ia swars of li with & requi of

the USFR that i3 non sddrossed Is he C0), including the Schoot Distries Procurement Rules ond the Ari Dep of Education’s
{ADE) bership and danee guidelines, the Audit Firm shool inchude the compliznce findings in its rzposty issuzd in sovondeace
with Gi } Auditing Standards and Tile 2 U5, Code of Federal Regulations Past 200, Unlform Administrative Reguirements,
Cost Principles, and Aundit Regui - for Federal Awards (Uniform Guldance), es opplicoble,

L]

The Audit Fitm oust make the resulting sudit documentation supposting the Avdit Finn's stuwoers on the CQ ovailable on request for the
Auditor Qenerals Office and b ADE's review, To facilitne this review, the Audit Finn stoutd incods in the sudit documenimtion & copy of
the CQ with ref 1o the nudit procedures performed for each g

As required by ARS. §§15-914(D), Audit Firms must submit the completed USFR CQ with the audit reparting pockage to the Awditor
Gencral's Office and the District’s county schood superintendent's office, and ADE CGirants Management, s opplicsble. Once the Audit Firm has
completed, reviewsd, and signed the €Q, it must submit # electrunicelly to tho Auditer Genersl's Offics by following the instructions et the cnd
of the O, Andit Finns should print the file to POF fo ceeate the ) documen to distribuie o the Disgict, the county school superintendent’s
office, and ADE Grants Meangement.



Vernon Elementary School District No.
USFR Compliance Questionnaire
Comments

June 30, 2020

EXPENDITURES
1. For four of 25 expenditures selected for review, the authorization to pay or a receiving
report that indicated the items or services were received or completed was not
documented. See Expenditures #3.

CREDIT CARDS AND PURCHASING CARDS (P-CARD)
2, The District incurred $308.21 in credit card late fees and finance charges during the

fiscal year. See Credit Cards and P-Card #9.

PROCUREMENT
3. The District did not provide training and guidance related to restrictions on soliciting,
accepting, or agreeing to accept any personal gift or benefit with a value of $300 or
more. See Procurement itl7.

PAYROLL
4. The District could not provide an employment contract or work agreement for one of
ten employees reviewed. See Payroll #s 6 and 12,

3. The District did not accurately caiculate and remit alternative contribution rate (ACR)
payments to ASRS for one ASRS retiree. The ACR rate for FY20 was 10.41%, and
based on our calculation, the District only remit 10.19% for that employee, which
resuted in an underpayment of $13.54. See Payroll #9.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

6. The District could not provide documentation of the date the SDER report was
originally submitted to the Arizona Department of Education. See Financial Report
#7.

STUDENT ATTENDANCE REPORTING
7. Two of five elementary and junior high students selected did not have absences
properly calculated, resulting in an understatement of absences of 1.5 days. See Student
Attendance Reporting #3.

8. For one of five students selected for entries, the District obtained a Proof of Arizona
Residency form, however, could not provide documentation supporting form. See
Student Attendance Reporting #16.

Appendix A
Page 1 of 1



This page intentionally left blank.



VERNON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 9

UNIFORM SYSTEM OF FINANCIAL RECORDS
COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



This page intentionally left blank.



DOBRIDGE
COMPANY PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Governing Board of
Vernon Elementary School District No. 9

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Vernon
Elementary School District No. 9 (District) and the Arizona Department of Education solely to
assist the specified parties in evaluating the District’s compliance with applicable legal
requirements during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The District’s management is
responsible for compliance with the applicable legal requirements. This agreed-upon procedures
engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the
responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this
report has been requested or for any other purpose. The procedures we performed are
summarized as follows:

Procedures: We completed the accompanying Uniform System of Financial Records
Compliance Questionnaire in accordance with the instructions contained therein.

Findings: Our findings are summarized in Appendix A of the accompanying Uniform System of
Financial Records Compliance Questionnaire.

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion, on compliance. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had
we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would
have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information of Vernon Elementary School District No. 9's
management, Governing Board, others within the entity, Arizona Office of the Auditor General
and Arizona Department of Education and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

L& \\?)k/ﬁ&ég_t\t CDLQC% ;P .

Dobridge & Company, P.C.
Mesa, Arizona

April 26, 2021

1930 S. Alma School Rd., Suite A-214 | Mesa, Arizona 85210
(623) 341-9050 | Fax: (623) 321-1874 | www.DobridgeCPA.com

1




This page intentionally left blank.



- o

VERNON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 9
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

Independent Accountants' Report on
Applying Agreed-Upon ProcedUres...........covurrmerernninenniarresensssssssnesssssssssressesssssrsressssess |

Compliance QUESHIONNAITE.........covivirverireeeeririseeeesrssee s csisresssesessessssssesssssssnssasessssessssssssrsseresssnssssss 1



This page intentionally left blank.



VERNON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
DISTRICT NO. %
UNIFORM SYSTEM OF FINANCIAL RECORDS
COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2020




